
 
Western Upper Peninsula Citizen Advisory Council (WUPCAC) 

Meeting Minutes 
Monday, May 18, 2015 

5:30-6:00pm EST DNR Division Reports  *  6:00-8:00pm EST Council Meeting 
Calumet Colosseum, Calumet, MI 

 
Facilitator:  Phil Wirtanen     Co-Facilitator: Warren Suchovsky 

 
Council Members Present
David Anthony 
Ken Buchholtz 
A.J. Campbell 
Floyd Dropps 
Larry Heathman 
Mike Holmes  

Mick Jarvi 
Katie Kruse 
George Lindquist 
Chauncey Moran  
Horst Schmidt 
Robert “Skip” Schulz 

Vicki Schwab 
Travis Smith 
Bob Stinson 
Warren Suchovsky  
Phil Wirtanen

Council Members Absent/Excused 
Joan Duncan 
Dave Johnson 

Jim Lorenson

  
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Staff Liaisons 
Kristi Dahlstrom, Executive Division, Marquette 
Bill Doan, Parks and Recreation Division, Baraga 
Terry Minzey, Wildlife Division, Ishpeming 
Stacy Haughey, Upper Peninsula Regional Coordinator, Marquette 
George Madison, Fisheries Division, Baraga 
Tim Melko, Finance and Operations Division, Marquette 
Don Mankee, Forest Resources Division, Baraga 
Lt. Pete Wright, Law Enforcement Division, Marquette 
 
 
Mrs. Haughey began the DNR Division Reports portion of the WUPCAC meeting at 5:32pm EST. 
She welcomed Dr. Kirk Schott from Senator Casperson’s Office and Ms. Aleah Hordges from 
WLUC-TV6.  She reminded the Council to let their stakeholder groups know about the meetings 
as there are still many people unaware of the great work being done by the Council.   
 
DNR Division Reports 
Written staff reports were provided to Council members on May 11, 2015.  The following verbal 
updates were provided. 
 Stacy Welling Haughey, UP Regional Coordinator:  Mrs. Haughey highlighted three 

updates: 
 She indicated a lot of feedback has been received regarding the recent notice of a 

change in deer regulations and the options being considered.  Several U.P. newspapers 
covered the story by indicating there may not be a season.  She explained the NRC asked 
the Wildlife Division to provide all options available.  These options were presented to 
the NRC at their May meeting.  These options were also sent via email to Council 
members; however, at the May meeting, the NRC reduced the options to only two.  Mr. 
Minzey will provide an update on this later in the meeting.   



WUPCAC Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 2 of 8 
 
 
 Council member Mr. Buchholtz recently received another award for his work on 

accessible hunting, the Passing Along the Heritage award.  If anyone has a need for 
accessible hunting, contact Mr. Buchholtz.  A round of applause was given.  Mr. 
Buchholtz stated the key is to hang around a good group of volunteers. 

 She explained the recent rash of meth lab waste dump sites being found in the U.P. 
woods now that the snow has melted.  She stated it is important to know what a meth 
lab waste dump site looks like when walking out in the woods.  Although it may look like 
simple garbage, meth waste, when disturbed by picking it up or moving it around, can 
be hazardous to one’s health.  She will forward an informational flyer via email to the 
Council. 

 Lt. Pete Wright, Law Enforcement Division:  Lt. Wright stated the Academy is winding down 
with 37 recruits remaining.  They will graduate on June 5 and will be out in the field 
afterwards for 18 weeks of training.  Mr. Dropps asked how many officers will be retiring in 
the next few years.  Lt. Wright replied approximately 50 will be eligible for retirement over 
the next five years, along with promotions to lieutenant and sergeant positions.  23 recruits 
were hired last year with another 37 this year.  It is not known yet how many new recruits 
will be assigned to District 1 in the western U.P.   

 Bill Doan, Parks and Recreation Division:  Mr. Doan stated he did not have any additions to 
his written report.  Mr. Schulz asked for the status of the Bewabic ORV park.  Mr. Doan 
stated an update is provided in the resolution response that will be reviewed later on in the 
meeting.  Mr. Stinson asked about the new road at McClain State Park.  Mr. Doan explained 
the loss of shoreline that has occurred from lake erosion and the future plans for the park.  
Mr. Campbell mentioned he noticed a few hazard trees at Fort Wilkins when he was 
camping there last weekend.  Mr. Doan will follow-up with park staff to take care of the 
trees.  He stated staff does have hazard tree training. 

 George Madison, Fisheries Division:  Mr. Madison provided an overview of the very active 
spring fish stocking activities currently being conducted in the UP.  He also provided an 
update on the land parcel purchase at Silver Lake Basin.  There was no public land on this 
lake previously and now the public has guaranteed access to this lake in perpetuity.  Mr. 
Lindquist stated he was very happy to see this acquisition and mentioned the difficulty in 
launching boats due to the shallow shore; Mr. Madison stated they’d like to keep the area 
serine and quiet.  Additional questions on fish plantings were answered.   

 Don Mankee, Forest Resource Division:  Mr. Mankee stated he is the new western UP 
forest supervisor.  He replaced Mr. Jeff Stampfly who is now the eastern UP forest 
supervisor.  He indicated he had no new additions to his report.   

 Terry Minzey, Wildlife Division:  Mr. Minzey provided the following updates: 
 The NRC approved the expansion of sharptail grouse hunting in the eastern UP.   
 Staff are heavily involved in spring planting activities, and ruffed grouse and other 

surveys. 
 Mr. Bill Scullon has accepted a promotion as operation manager for the Baraga, 

Marquette, and Shingleton areas.  His office will remain in Norway.  Mr. Lindquist asked 
who will handle the DRIP grants; Mr. Minzey stated Mr. Scullon will continue managing 
those grants.  He also mentioned with the private land process functioning well, he 
would like to downgrade the former position and fill it with a wildlife tech for the 
Newberry area.   



WUPCAC Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 3 of 8 
 
 
 The Mining Journal ran a story on the front page yesterday regarding state game areas 

which indicated there are state game areas in the UP when there are not.  He will be 
talking with them to get it corrected.   
- Questions were answered regarding grouse habitat and woodcock populations.  
- Mr. Schulz asked if there were will be any efforts to increase the moose population; 

Mr. Minzey replied not at this time. 
- Mr. Lindquist mentioned an MUCC on-the-ground event on May 24th to plant 140 

oak trees.  Volunteers are needed and can meet at the DNR Gwinn Field Office at 
9am.   

- Mr. Dropps asked about fawn survival.  Mr. Minzey indicated it is too early to know 
as it’s the beginning of fawning season now.  He stated more information will be 
known in July.   

 Tim Melko, Facilities and Operations Division:  Mr. Melko reminded the group that the 
application for bear hunts is due by June 1st.   

 
Call To Order 
Facilitator Wirtanen called the regular meeting to order at 6:17pm EST.  Members recited the 
Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
Adoption of Agenda 
Facilitator Wirtanen asked if there were any additions to the agenda.  Mr. Lindquist indicated 
that Chair Pershinske from the EUPCAC has asked the WUPCAC to consider a joint resolution.  
Facilitator Wirtanen explained the process for an emergency resolution, indicating the Council 
will need to vote whether or not to bring the resolution to the floor for discussion.  He added it 
under New Business for consideration.  Mr. Stinson motioned to accept the agenda as 
amended; Mr. Jarvi supported the motion.  Ayes: All.  Nays: None.  Absent:  Ms. Duncan, Mr. 
Johnson, and Mr. Lorenson.  Motion carried.  
 
Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes 
Facilitator Wirtanen asked if there were any corrections or additions to the March 16, 2015 
Joint UPCAC meeting minutes or the January 12, 2015 WUPCAC meeting minutes, which were 
emailed to each member previously.  There were no other corrections noted.  Mr. Schulz 
motioned to approve both sets of minutes as submitted; Mr. Anthony supported the motion. 
Ayes: All.  Nays: None.  Absent:  Ms. Duncan, Mr. Johnson, and Mr. Lorenson.  Motion 
carried.  
 
Annual Election of Officers 
Facilitator Wirtanen noted the Bylaws require the Council to have an officer election each year 
and the Council typically holds the elections in May.  He explained the process and opened the 
floor for nominations for 2015. 
1. Mr. Anthony nominated Mr. Wirtanen and Mr. Suchovsky to continue as Facilitator and Co-

Facilitator, respectively.  Mr. Wirtanen and Mr. Suchovsky both accepted the nomination.  
Facilitator Wirtanen asked twice again for additional nominations.  There were no 
additional nominations brought forward.  There was no additional discussion. 



WUPCAC Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 4 of 8 
 
 
2. Facilitator Wirtanen asked for a motion to approve the nominations.  Mr. Jarvi motioned to 

accept the nominations for Facilitator and Co-Facilitator for 2015; Mr. Holmes supported 
the motion.  Ayes: All.  Nays: None.  Absent:  Ms. Duncan, Mr. Johnson, and Mr. Lorenson.  
Motion carried.  

Mr. Wirtanen remains Facilitator and Mr. Suchovsky remains Co-Facilitator for 2015.  Both 
thanked the Council for their support. 
 
Public Comments on Agenda Items Only 
Facilitator Wirtanen explained the procedure for this section of the meeting and opened the 
floor for public comments. 
 Ms. Diane Miller of Hancock spoke about alternative energy and biomass burning.  She 

stated she is concerned with the information she has been uncovering and described 
several instances in which claims of biomass burning being environmental friendly is false.  
The claim that there is an abundance of biomass is also false, she said, and the L’Anse plant 
has been looking/advertising for wood to burn.   She indicated she made a presentation 
several weeks ago at the Portage Library and 50 people attended.   
 Facilitator Wirtanen explained the mission of the Council is to provide advisement to 

the DNR on policies, procedures, and issues.  He felt that the topic of biomass may be 
beyond the scope of the DNR at this point.  He thanked her for providing the 
information. 

 Mr. Schulz discussed how paper mills relied on trees and now both are gone.  He 
doesn’t feel it’s a sustainable market.   

 Mr. Suchovsky stated it is an interesting topic and may be something the Forestry 
Committee will discuss in the future.  He stated he may invite Ms. Miller to one of their 
committee meetings.   

 Mr. Schmidt commended Ms. Miller for coming to provide her view.  He stated her key 
issue is what biomass plants are using could be harmful to humans. 

 Mrs. Haughey stated how it pertains to the DNR should be considered.  The topic may 
also relate to another forum, such as DEQ.    

 
Old Business 
1. U.P. Wildlife Habitat Workgroup Update:  Mr. Lindquist reported that each meeting has 

been very interesting and covers a multitude of information, attendees are allowed to 
provide input, and it seems like things are moving forward.  They are working on a wintering 
plan for the Lake Gogebic area.  After a suggestion about looking at power and gas line 
corridors, they are also looking at potential partnerships for spring plantings.  Several 
possibilities to enhance deer habitat are being reviewed.  He recommends attending these 
meetings if interested.  As he receives information from the workgroup, he forwards it on to 
the Wildlife Committee.  The next meeting will be on June 23 at the Red Rock Lanes in 
Ishpeming.  He discussed grant opportunities available.  Mrs. Haughey added there is a 
grant workshop in Marquette tomorrow (May 19) from 9am-12noon at the Ramada Inn.  
Mr. Lindquist stated he will be going to the workshop.  Facilitator Wirtanen noted that Lake 
Gogebic is a prime area for wolves and to attract deer there seems to defeat the goal.  Mr. 
Minzey added the concept is to create a habitat structure so that deer don’t have to 
congregate.    



WUPCAC Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 5 of 8 
 
 
 
 
New Business 
1. U.P. Deer Management Options for 2015:  Facilitator Wirtanen noted the Council will now 

consider the joint resolution mentioned earlier in the meeting.  Mr. Minzey provided a 
historical perspective of the effects of recent winters on the U.P. deer herd and the 
consistent reduction of antlerless tags over the last few seasons.  He explained the options 
in regulation changes provided to the NRC at their request.  At their May 7th meeting, the 
NRC reviewed the options and eliminated all but two of them (Option A-No season or 
Option B-No antlerless hunting during archery season).  On May 15th, the EUPCAC had a 
quick meeting of their deer subcommittee to review the remaining two options; they 
developed a resolution to be considered by both the EUPCAC and WUPCAC Councils.  He 
opened the floor for questions. 
 Mr. Horst asked how Option B would affect the herd; Mr. Minzey stated it would 

reduce the harvest by approximately 6,000 animals.   
 Mr. Smith stated he has given the issue much thought.  He is not in favor of Option B.  

He added in the explanation given to the NRC for Option B, it states the result would be 
“negligible” and would possibly result in winter loss as well.  He stated the three things 
to keep in mind in making a decision is how will the DNR address depredation (coyotes 
not wolves), deer habitat needs more work, and use of crossbows.  Mr. Minzey noted 
that the term “negligible” was written as a statewide statement, although this issue 
affects the U.P. only.  He added that habitat changes will take years to get it where it 
needs to be.   

 Mr. Jarvis felt it’s a good idea to take cut out the late season.   
 Mr. Lindquist suggested a presentation by the predator prey study group at the next 

meeting.  Mr. Minzey agreed the coyote is a big predator for deer. 
Facilitator Wirtanen asked for a vote on whether to entertain the resolution for 
discussion.  Mr. Lindquist motioned to review the resolution; Mr. Stinson supported the 
motion.  Ayes: 15.  Nays: 2.  Absent:  Ms. Duncan, Mr. Johnson, and Mr. Lorenson.  
Motion carried by majority. 
 
Facilitator Wirtanen asked Mr. Lindquist to read the joint resolution:  The Eastern Upper 
Peninsula Advisory Council and the Western Upper Peninsula Advisory Council 
recommends support of the MDNR’s proposed 2015 UP deer harvest reduction regulation, 
Option B – Eliminate the antlerless option during archery season for hunters hunting on 
deer licenses in the U.P. including the combination license.  Mr. Lindquist also reviewed his 
response on U.P. whitetails he gave Mr. John Pepin from the Mining Journal.  Discussion 
ensued on the NRC’s potential decision at the June 11th meeting, the three existing DMU’s 
in the U.P., and preventing crop damage by deer.  Mr. Moran felt that the resolution 
statement is not as clarified as the NRC memorandum explaining Option B; Mr. Anthony 
suggested adding the NRC memo as an attachment to the resolution.   Mr. Stinson 
motioned to accept the amended Joint CAC resolution with the attachment statement:  
(see attached Memo to the NRC, with a resubmitted date of May 11, 2015 for further 
information); Mr. Lindquist supported the motion.  Ayes: 15.  Nays: 2. Absent:  Ms. 
Duncan, Mr. Johnson, and Mr. Lorenson.  Motion carried by majority. 



WUPCAC Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 6 of 8 
 
 

 
2. Review of Response to March Joint UPCAC Meeting Resolutions:  Mrs. Haughey stated the 

response indicates the DNR’s process for updating the DNR wolf management plan.  No 
further questions were asked by the Council.   
    

3. Additional Agenda Items Added by Council:  There were no additional items added to the 
agenda.  
 

Committee Meeting Reports 
1. Trails/Recreation/Law:   Facilitator Wirtanen reported in Mr. Lorenson’s absence.  
 Review of Response to January Resolutions:  Facilitator Wirtanen summarized Director 

Creagh’s response to both resolutions submitted from the January WUPCAC meeting 
which was included in the meeting packets.  As a result of the Council’s 
recommendation, the Director has submitted a Land Use Order for the establishment of 
an ORV crossing and designation at Bewabic State Park.  It will be placed on the NRC’s 
agenda for information at the June 2015 meeting, and action by the Director in July.  For 
the second resolution, the Director stated the DNR supports seeking opportunities for 
multi-use trails as they arise.  Mrs. Haughey thanked Mr. Lehto for use of the building 
this evening and mentioned that Mr. Lehto had trail concerns; she will connect him with 
the subcommittee group. 

 
 New Resolution for Council Consideration:  Facilitator Wirtanen reviewed the resolution 

submitted by the committee:   Recommend the MDNR support the Porcupine 
Mountains Wilderness State Park’s initiative to expand its mountain bike trail system 
and further support its application for external (grant) funding form the International 
Mountain Bike Association for same.  Mr. Doan explained that the resolution is specific 
to mountain bike trails.  Riders currently use the cross country ski trails in the summer.  
The concept is to have a trail system for three different user groups and to apply for 
outside grant funding (from external agencies) to accomplish this goal.  The resolution is 
to seek support for this concept.  Mr. Moran suggested there be limited use during 
spring run-off to allow for a certain dry period.  Mr. Doan stated this could be 
implemented as the need arises through a Director’s Order.  Mr. Stinson motioned to 
approve the resolution; Mr. Smith supported the motion. Ayes: All.  Nays: None.  
Absent: Ms. Duncan, Mr. Johnson and Mr. Lorenson.  Motion carried.   

 
2. Forestry:  Mr. Suchovsky stated the committee met and has two resolutions for the Council 

to consider: 
 Resolution #1:  Recommend the MDNR develop long range plans that address the 

amount, kind, and location of trails that will be needed in the future and that the 
current and projected trail mileage be balanced with funding necessary to maintain 
them once constructed.  Furthermore, we strongly encourage the MDNR to support 
legislative efforts to amend the Natural Resources Trust Fund, the Parks and Recreation 
Trust Fund, the Land and Water Conservation Trust Fund and appropriate funds to 
require that a certain percentage of available funds in any given year be spent on 
repair and maintenance of the trail systems.  Mr. Suchovsky motioned to approve the 



WUPCAC Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 7 of 8 
 
 

resolution; Mr. Stinson supported the motion. Discussion followed.  Mr. Suchovsky 
indicated trails would include snowmobile, equestrian, etc.  Mr. Dropps stated although 
he likes the idea, he doesn’t think one area should be signaled out for trust fund monies.  
Mr. Anthony noted the current legislation regarding the Trust Fund does not address 
this; Mrs. Haughey added it would require a constitutional change.  Mr. Anthony 
clarified what is being asked is for the DNR to establish policy to direct resources to that 
use.  Mr. Lindquist said he does not want to alter the restrictions on the funds as other 
agencies want to tap into the source as well; the DNR should figure out where to get 
funding from.  Mrs. Haughey offered to have the Forest Resources Division provide a 
presentation on the work currently being done.  Mr. Suchovsky rebutted Mr. Lindquist’s 
comments, stating the DNR has several sources to buy things with, but not enough 
resources to take care of what they obtain; there needs to be dedicated funding for 
trails.  Mr. Smith also does not agree with altering the Trust Fund monies.  Facilitator 
Wirtanen suggested the resolution be sent back to the committee for modification; Mr. 
Suchovsky agreed.  Discussion ensued regarding funding.  Mr. Anthony motioned to 
table the resolution and send it back to committee; Mr. Lindquist supported the 
motion.  Ayes: All.  Nays: None.  Absent: Ms. Duncan, Mr. Johnson and Mr. Lorenson.  
Motion carried.   

 
 Resolution #2:  Strongly recommend the following pertaining to Forest Roads (see 

corresponding meeting documentation): a) That the MDNR’s Forest Resources Division 
(FRD) develop a long range plan for future needs for forest roads and recreational 
trails. This planning should include road systems on federal and private lands as part of 
a crucial network of multipurpose forest roads; b) That all permanent forest roads be 
adequately signed including location indicators such as mile markers and GPS 
coordinates at intersections with other permanent forest roads and public roads. c) 
That the FRD budget have a line item to fund regularly occurring maintenance of forest 
roads and bridges and that the budgeted amount more accurately reflects the cost of 
an annual maintenance program.  d) That stable annual funding for an improved repair 
and maintenance program come from the Forest Development Fund, sporting licenses 
and other user fees.  e) To be supportive of legislative efforts to amend the Natural 
Resources Trust Fund, the Parks and Recreation Trust Fund, the Land and Water 
Conservation Trust Fund, and other appropriate funds to require that a certain 
percentage of available funds in any given year be spent on repair and maintenance of 
the forest roads system.  Mr. Suchovsky reviewed the resolution and added a few 
explanations for items a-d.  Mr. Doan explained possible funding from different areas 
and stated the lion share of funding for the forest road system comes from timber sale 
operations.  Discussion continued on forest certification standards for reacting to 
resource damage.  Mrs. Haughey asked if it would be helpful to get a status update.  
Members agreed.  She will determine what the focus of the presentation will be with Mr. 
Suchovsky.  Mr. Suchovsky stated the Council does not have to move on this resolution 
at this time.  Rather, a presentation will be provided to the Council on the process that is 
in place and at that time, the Council can weigh in as needed.   

 
DNR Reports on Requested Information 



WUPCAC Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 8 of 8 
 
 
There were no reports/information requested. 
 
Next Meeting 
1. Next Meeting Date:  Facilitator Wirtanen noted the next WUPCAC meeting is scheduled for 

Monday, July 20, 2015.  Mrs. Welling stated that there is a large county meeting on the 20th 
and asked Council members if July 21st might work.  July 13th was also suggested.  Facilitator 
Wirtanen stated he will send out an email soliciting availability for an alternate date.  
(*NOTE:  Since the May 18th meeting, the next WUPCAC meeting date has been changed 
to July 14, 2015, based on Council majority.)    
 

2. Items for Next Meeting Agenda:  Facilitator Wirtanen stated that Mr. Lorenson has 
suggested the Council be surveyed for future agenda topics in order to develop a prioritized 
schedule that might closely match issues the NRC considers at their monthly meetings.   He 
stated Mr. Lorenson will develop the survey and send it out to the Council; Facilitator 
Wirtanen encouraged completion of the survey.  Other suggested agenda items include a 
state forest road presentation and a possible predatory prey study presentation.   

 
Public Comments 
Facilitator Wirtanen opened the floor to members of the audience for their comments about 
general topics.   
 A member of the audience commended council members for their time and holding a 

meeting in Calumet. 
 

Closing Comments 
Facilitator Wirtanen opened the floor for closing comments from the Council. 
 Mr. Schulz thanked Ms. Miller for her comments.  He mentioned the ORV community 

supports fishermen with the fees they pay.  He commended Mr. Suchovsky, Facilitator 
Wirtanen, and Mr. Lorenson for their work with the subcommittee; the structure really 
works.  And he commended the DNR staff who are at all the meetings. 

 Mr. Moran commented on the importance of the Silver Lake basin project.  Through the 
hard work of Mr. Madison of the Fisheries Division, the DNR was able to acquire land to 
provide public access that wasn’t there before.  It is a very good fishery.   

 Mr. Lindquist mentioned the Friends of Harlow Lake partnership is working to enhance 
access for a key recreational area, but he is concerned with that area also being a key 
wintering deer complex and the harm it could bring with additional public traffic in that 
area.  Mrs. Haughey suggested Mr. Lindquist talk with Mr. Minzey and Mr. Doan regarding 
this issue. 

 Mr. Schmidt stated in regards to the comments and resolution on trails and roads that Mr. 
Suchovsky worked on, he feels that with the heavy increase in promoting tourism by Pure 
Michigan, those trails and roads need to be fixed in order to coincide with their efforts.   

 Mr. Dropps stated he doesn’t disagree that the ORV community needs more money; all 
areas need more money and maybe all should share the Trust Fund benefits.   

 
Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 8:24pm EST. 



WUPCAC Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2015 
Page 9 of 8 
 
 
 


